
OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA
Notice is hereby given that the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin

will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given

below.

Meeting of the:
Date /Time:
Location:

Members:

Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton

Wednesday, May 13, 2015 @ 5:30 pm.

Hall of Fame Room (381 E Main St, Stoughton WI 53589)

Dan Kittleson, Steve Sletten, Scott Truehl, Peter Sveum, Ron Christianson, Tom Selsor, John

Kramper, Brian Kahl and Laurie Sullivan

1 Call to Order

2 Introduction of new RDA members

3 Elect Committee Chair

4 Elect Committee Vice Chair

5 Communications

6 Approval of the April 8, 2015 RDA meeting minutes.

7 Presentation by Mark Badger: Yahara Riverfront Station project

8 Authorize Vierbicher contract for RDA Services

9 Approve Finance Director Sullivan’s signature as an authorized signature for Grant
purposes

10 Discuss any Redevelopment Area Number One developments
*Closed Session: The Meeting May Close Per State Statute 19.85(1)(e),
deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public
funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or
bargaining reasons require a closed session, and then reopen for the regular course
of business.

11 Future Agenda Items

12 Adjournment

“If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting.

NOTE: AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL.

Note: For security reasons, the front door of the City Hall Building will be locked after 4:30 p.m. If you need to enter City
Hall after that time, please use the Fifth Street entrances.





 


 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given 


below. 


 


 


 


Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 


Members: 


Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton 


Wednesday, May 13, 2015 @ 5:30 pm. 


Hall of Fame Room (381 E Main St, Stoughton WI 53589)  


Dan Kittleson, Steve Sletten, Scott Truehl, Peter Sveum, Ron Christianson, Tom Selsor, John 


Kramper, Brian Kahl and Laurie Sullivan 


 


1 Call to Order 
 


2 Introduction of new RDA members 
 


3 Elect Committee Chair 
 


4 Elect Committee Vice Chair 
 


5 Communications 
 


6 Approval of the April 8, 2015 RDA meeting minutes. 
 


7 Presentation by Mark Badger:  Yahara Riverfront Station project 
 


8 Authorize Vierbicher contract for RDA Services 
 


9 Approve Finance Director Sullivan’s signature as an authorized signature for Grant 
purposes 


 


10 Discuss any Redevelopment Area Number One developments 
*Closed Session:   The Meeting May Close Per State Statute 19.85(1)(e),       
deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public 
funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or 
bargaining reasons require a closed session, and then reopen for the regular course 
of business. 
 


11 Future Agenda Items 
 


12         Adjournment 
 


 
 
“If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting.  
 
NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL. 
 
Note: For security reasons, the front door of the City Hall Building will be locked after 4:30 p.m.  If you need to enter City 
Hall after that time, please use the Fifth Street entrances. 








2015  REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY COMMITTEE 


 


 


 


 Member    Phone  Term  E-mail 


 


1.  Dan Kittleson    **    877-9180 2017  dkittleson@oakbankonline.com 


 


2.  Steve Sletten    609-9624 2019  steve.sletten@gmailcom 


 


3.  Peter Sveum   **    575-1054 2018  pasveum@cbsuccess.com 


 


4.  John Kramper   (work) 838-5051 2019  jkramper@msbonline.com 


     (cell)    712-7605   jnkramper@aol.com 


 


5.  Scott Truehl  **    963-7060 2017  sgtruehl@friede.com 


 


6.  Tom Selsor  


(Council Rep)      2016  tselsor@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


7.  Ron Christianson  


(Council Rep)    444-7022 2016  rchristianson@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


8.  Laurie Sullivan,  


Exec Dir/Staff Advisor  209-4043   lsullivan@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


9.  Brian Kahl (Alternate)     2020  kahl.brian@yahoo.com 


 


 


 


New terms are for 5 years. 


 


 


 


 


** Revolving Loan Fund Sub-Committee Members 



mailto:jkramper@msbonline.com

mailto:lsullivan@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:kahl.brian@yahoo.com






REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, April 8, 2015 – 5:30 p.m.  
EMS Training Room/516 S. Fourth St., Stoughton WI 


Present:  
Scott Truehl, Dan Kittleson, John Kramper, Steve Sletten, Jim Schaefer, Peter 
Sveum, Ron Christianson, Sid Boersma and Finance Director Laurie Sullivan  
 


Absent: 
None. 
 
Others Present: 
Mayor Donna Olson, Tom Selsor, Gary Becker, Ryon Savasta, Mike Engelberger, 
Planning Director Rodney Scheel, Attorney Matt Dregne, Dave Porterfield and Lisa Aide 
 
Call to order:  
Sveum called meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Communications: 
None. 
 
Approval of March 11, 2015 Meeting Minutes: 
Moved by Christianson, seconded by Boersma, to approve the minutes of the March 11, 
2015 RDA meeting as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Discuss any Redevelopment Area Number One developments: 
Gary Becker handed out and went thru the Stoughton Riverfront Redevelopment 
Schedule & Work Plan.  Becker pointed out a few highlights – Phase II will be 
delayed until July to take advantage of available grant money, Developer 
Proposals will not go out until we have site control with a due date targeting the 
end of August, rezoning is on schedule with the Planning Commission taking up 
at their next meeting.  Becker reviewed and discussed the many grants available 
and their deadlines as shown on the Sources & Uses of Funds Summary that 
was provided.  Becker confirmed that the Plan covers all the riverfront properties 
– Mill Fab, City garage and Highway Trailer building.   
 
Becker went thru the Draft Request for Proposals for the Riverfront 
Redevelopment Area with the Committee.  Discussion on timeline of the 
Proposals took place.  Need to wait until RDA has control – an accepted 
purchase agreement from the Receiver and court approval before they can be 
sent out.  Looking at middle to end of May for Proposals to go out with a 
deadline to return the end of August so that they can be reviewed at the RDA 
meeting in September where a short list of developers will be approved and 
presentations by developers at the October meeting to follow with a selection by 
the end of October.  Vierbicher will be sending out the RFP’s by a direct mailing, 
looking to get some local promotion and press and is hoping 6 to 8 developers 
respond with proposals.   
 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes 
April 8, 2015 
Page 2 
 


Becker stated that the RFP will have links to all of the plans on the website for 
developers.  Developers will be encouraged to look at private owned properties 
adjacent to the Riverfront Redevelopment Area and include them in their 
proposal.  Sveum asked Planning Director Scheel to review the draft and let the 
RDA know of any concerns he may have before our May meeting.  Becker 
stated that the final RFP will be ready for the May meeting for approval by the 
committee.   
 
Sveum informed the Committee that MobCraft, the interested party in the Power 
Plant, has refocused their plans and Stoughton is no longer an option for them.  
Sveum instructed Becker to include that property in the RFP as well for potential 
developers to consider.   
 
Sveum stated he contacted Mark Badger to see if he would be interested in 
making a presentation to the RDA on his Yahara Riverfront Station project that 
Sveum read about in the paper.  Committee agreed that his presentation would 
be beneficial and to have Sveum invite him to our next meeting.  
 
Dave Porterfield with Movin Out joined the Committee.  He stated that he was 
there to gather information and to see if the RDA had any plans for the 
Riverfront area and was happy to hear Becker’s presentation.  He just finished a 
project in Waunakee and is interested in doing possibly another project in 
Stoughton.  He will be looking at the market to see if the economy and need is 
right and then he will submit a proposal once the RFP’s come out. 
 
Marathon Site Update: 
Ryon Savasta joined the Committee to give an update on the Marathon Site. 
Lee & Associates sent out 60 direct mailers to potential medical users and is 
now in the process of following up with them.  He did an e-mail blast to 600 
users – developers, real estate agents, etc.  Just trying to get interest back in the 
site with no hard inquires to report at this time. 
 
Revolving Loan Fund Update: 
Sveum stated that there was nothing new at this time to report. 
 
Vierbicher Report on Mill Fab area investigation: 
Becker stated nothing more to add at this time. 
 
Closed Session - Mill Fab Offer to Purchase: 
Moved by Schaefer, seconded by Boersma, to close the meeting per State Statute 
19.85(1)(e) deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing 
of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or 
bargaining reasons require a closed session; and then reopen for the regular course of 
business Re: Discuss possible option to purchase property known as the Mill Fab site. 
Went into closed session at 6:32 p.m. 
Moved by Truehl, seconded by Schaefer, to reopen the meeting for the regular course 
of business at 7:00 p.m. 
 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes 
April 8, 2015 
Page 3 


Motion by Truehl, seconded by Christianson, to approve the Purchase Agreement as 
presented, to authorize the City Attorney and the Chair of RDA to adjust schedules as 
necessary, to approve the April 16, 2015 deadline for the acceptance of the Offer, 
Agreement is subject to Council approval and authorization of funding, and RDA 
approval of Phase II Environmental study results and to move that the Chair is 
authorized to make minor changes as deemed necessary to execute the Purchase 
Agreement.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Future Agenda Items: 
Elect Chair & Vice Chair 
Redevelopment Area Number One developments 
Approval of Request for Proposals for the Riverfront Redevelopment Area 
Presentation by Mark Badger: Yahara Riverfront Station project  
Marathon Site Update 
 
 
Adjourn:  
Moved by Boersma, seconded by Christianson, to adjourn at 7:01p.m. 


Respectfully submitted, 
Lisa Aide 
Finance Department 








 
 


 


999 Fourier Drive, Suite 201 


Madison, Wisconsin 53717 


(608) 826-0532 phone 


(608) 826-0530 FAX 


www.vierbicher.com 


vision to reality 
 


R e e d s b u r g  ( 6 0 8 )  5 2 4 - 6 4 6 8  |  M a d i s o n  ( 6 0 8 )  8 2 6 - 0 5 3 2  |  P r a i r i e  d u  C h i e n  ( 6 0 8 )  3 2 6 - 1 0 5 1  


 


May 7, 2015 


 


 


Peter Sveum, Chair 


City of Stoughton Redevelopment Authority 


c/o Laurie Sullivan, Stoughton Finance Director 


381 E. Main St. 


Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


Re: Redevelopment Authority Planning Services  


 


Dear Mr. Sveum: 


 


Vierbicher Associates, Inc. (Consultant) is pleased to submit this Agreement to provide services to the 


City of Stoughton Redevelopment Authority (Client).    


 


I. SCOPE OF PROJECT 


 


Consultant will provide redevelopment planning services as directed by the Client. 


 


II. SPECIFIC SCOPE OF SERVICES 


 


Consultant will attend Redevelopment Authority meetings and, as directed by the Client, 


prepare background material or reports, prepare grant applications, coordinate activities with 


City staff, City attorney and representatives of funding sources and provide advice and general 


consultation on issues related to redevelopment planning.   


 


III. SCHEDULE 


 


Consultant will provide timely services to meet project schedules as directed by the Client.   


 


IV. DESIGNATION OF RESPONSIBLE PARTIES 


 


The designated responsible parties representing the Client and Consultant respectively shall 


have authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and render decisions relative to the 


project on behalf of each respective party. 


 







May 7, 2014 


Page 2 


vision to reality 
 


R e e d s b u r g  ( 6 0 8 )  5 2 4 - 6 4 6 8  |  M a d i s o n  ( 6 0 8 )  8 2 6 - 0 5 3 2  |  P r a i r i e  d u  C h i e n  ( 6 0 8 )  3 2 6 - 1 0 5 1  


 


 


Overall coordination and project supervision for Consultant is the responsibility of Gary Becker, 


Project Manager.  He, along with others, will provide the services required for the various aspects 


of the services provided.  Please direct all communications that have a substantive impact on 


the project to Gary. 


 


The Client designates Laurie Sullivan as its representative.  Consultant will direct all 


communications that have a substantive impact on the project to her. 


 


V. FEES 


 


The fee for services will be billed on a time and expense basis. Client will inform Consultant of 


budget constraints and Consultant will work with Client to manage fees within those constraints. 


 


Gary’s hourly rate is $180.  Gary will direct work to staff planners where practical. Staff planners 


bill at an hourly rate of $100.   


 


  Most fees are expected to be TIF-eligible expenses.   


  


VI. GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS 


 


 The General Terms and Conditions attached hereto are incorporated herein by reference. 


 


 


In witness whereof the parties have made and executed this Agreement as of the day and year written 


below. 


 


 


Client       Consultant 


  


        
_________________________________   ___________________________________                                                                                                              


Peter Sveum, Chair     Gary Becker, CEcD, Project Manager 


City of Stoughton Redevelopment Authority  Community Development/Planning 


381 E. Main St.  Vierbicher Associates, Inc. 


Stoughton, WI 53589     999 Fourier Drive, Suite 201 


       Madison, WI 53717 


 


        


        5/7/15    


Date       Date 


 


___________________________________   ____________________________________                                                      


Witness       Witness 


 


 


 


 







May 7, 2014 


Page 3 


vision to reality 
 


R e e d s b u r g  ( 6 0 8 )  5 2 4 - 6 4 6 8  |  M a d i s o n  ( 6 0 8 )  8 2 6 - 0 5 3 2  |  P r a i r i e  d u  C h i e n  ( 6 0 8 )  3 2 6 - 1 0 5 1  


 


 


If this Agreement is acceptable to you, please sign and return one copy to me at our Madison office.  


Should you have any questions or require any additional information, please call.  We look forward to 


working with you on this project. 


 


Sincerely, 


VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES, INC. 


 


 
 


Gary Becker, CEcD 


Project Manager 


 


 


© 2015 Vierbicher Associates, Inc. 


 


Attachment: General Terms and Conditions 


 


 
M:\Stoughton RDA\Contracts\Stoughton RDA Services 050715.docx 







Rev. 7/1/14  


Page 1 of 3 
(General Terms and Conditions) 


W:\Standard Contracts\GeneralTerms and Cond Rev 0714-HVC.doc 


VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES, INC. (CONSULTANT) 
 GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICES 


 
1. Services Not Provided as Part of This Contract 
 


Environmental studies, resident construction observation services, 
archaeological investigations, soil borings, flood plain analysis, 
wetland delineations, public hearing representation, easements, 
property descriptions or surveys, negotiations for property rights 
acquisitions, and other detailed studies or investigations, unless 
specifically identified in this Agreement for Services, are not 
included as part of this work.   


 
2. Hazardous Environmental Conditions 
 


Unless specifically identified in this Agreement for Services, it is 
acknowledged by both parties that Consultant’s scope of services 
does not include any services  related to the discovery, 
identification, presence, handling, removal, transportation, or 
remediation at the site, or the inspection and testing of hazardous 
materials, such as asbestos, mold, lead paint, PCBs, petroleum, 
hazardous waste, or radioactive materials.  Client acknowledges 
that Consultant is performing professional services for Client, and 
Consultant is not and shall not be required to become an “arranger,” 
“operator,” “generator” or “transporter” of hazardous substances as 
defined in the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation, and Liability Act of 1990 (CERCLA).  If Client is the 
owner of the project site, Client shall defend, indemnify and hold 
Consultant harmless from and against any CERCLA-based claims. 


 
3. Additional Services 
 


The Scope of Services in this Agreement is intended to cover 
services normally required for this type of project.  However, 
occasionally events occur beyond the control of the Consultant or 
the Client that create a need for additional services beyond those 
required for a standard contract. 


 
The Consultant and/or Client shall promptly and in a timely manner 
bring to the attention of the other the potential need to change the 
Scope of Services set forth above, necessitated by a change in the 
Scope of Project, Scope of Services, or the Schedule.  When a 
change in the Scope of Services, Schedule, or Fees is agreed to by 
the Consultant and Client, it shall be initiated by written 
authorization of both parties. 


 
4. Client’s Responsibility  
 


A. Provide Consultant with all criteria and full information as to 
Client’s requirements for the project, including design 
objectives and constraints, capacity and performance 
requirements, flexibility, expandability, and any budgetary 
limitations; furnish previous plans, studies and other 
information relevant to the project; furnish copies of all design 
and construction standards which Client will require to be 
included in the drawings and specifications; and furnish copies 
of Client’s standard forms, and conditions, including insurance 
requirements and related documents for Consultant to include 
in the bidding documents, or otherwise when applicable. 


 
B. Furnish to Consultant any other information pertinent to the 


project including reports and data relative to previous designs, 
or investigations at or adjacent to the site, including hazardous 
environmental conditions and other data such as reports, 
investigations, actions or citations. 


 
C. Arrange for safe access to and make all provisions for 


Consultant to enter upon public and private property as 
required for Consultant to perform services under this 
Agreement. 


 
D. Examine all alternate solutions, studies, reports, sketches, 


drawings, specifications, proposals, and other documents 
presented by Consultant and render timely decisions 
pertaining thereto. 


 


E. For projects involving construction, attend any pre-bid 
conference, bid opening, pre-construction conferences, 
construction progress and other job related meetings, and 
substantial completion and final payment inspections. 


 
F. For projects involving construction, if more than one prime 


contract is to be awarded for the work designed or specified by 
Consultant, designate a person or entity to have authority and 
responsibility for coordinating the activities among the various 
prime contractors, and define and set forth in writing the 
duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such 
individual or entity and the relation thereof to the duties, 
responsibilities, and authority of Consultant.  


 
G. For projects involving construction, if Client designates a 


Construction Manager or an individual or entity other than, or 
in addition to, Consultant to represent Client at the site, the 
Client shall define and set forth in writing the duties, 
responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such other party 
and the relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and 
authority of Consultant and make a part of this Agreement.   


 
H. Provide information relative to all concealed conditions, 


subsurface conditions, soil conditions, as-built information, and 
other site boundary conditions. Consultant shall be entitled to 
rely upon the accuracy and completeness of such information. 


 
5. General Considerations (for projects involving construction) 
 


A. Consultant shall not at any time supervise, direct, or have 
control over any contractor’s work, nor shall Consultant have 
authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected 
or used by any contractor, for safety precautions and programs 
incident to a contractor’s work progress, nor for any failure of 
any contractor to comply with laws and regulations applicable 
to contractor’s work. 


 
B. Consultant neither guarantees the performance of any 


contractor nor assumes responsibility for any contractor’s 
failure to furnish and perform its work in accordance with the 
contract between Owner and such contractor. 


 
C. Consultant shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of 


any contractor, subcontractor or supplier, or of any contractor’s 
agents or employees or any other persons (except 
Consultant’s own employees) at the project site or otherwise 
furnishing or performing any of construction work; or for any 
decision made on interpretations or clarifications of the 
construction contract given by Owner without consultation and 
advice of Consultant. 
 


6. Fees 
  


A. The fees set forth in this Agreement are based on the 
assumption that the work will be completed within the time 
frame set forth herein.  If significant delays to the project occur, 
which are not due to the negligence of the Consultant, e.g. 
decisions of the Client, regulatory approvals, deferrals to the 
next construction season or calendar year, etc., the Consultant 
reserves the right to negotiate and adjust an appropriate 
change to the fees. 


 
B. Consultant may submit invoices monthly for work completed to 


date.  Fixed fees will be submitted on the basis of percent of 
the Scope of Services completed.  Estimated fees will be 
submitted on the basis of time and expense incurred in 
accordance with Consultant’s fee schedule in effect at the time 
the costs are incurred. 


 
C. Invoices are due upon receipt.  For invoices not paid after 30 


days, interest will accrue at the rate of 1 ½% per month. 
Payments will be credited first to interest and then to principal.  
In the event any portion of the account remains unpaid after 90 







Rev. 7/1/14  


Page 2 of 3 
(General Terms and Conditions) 


W:\Standard Contracts\GeneralTerms and Cond Rev 0714-HVC.doc 


days after the billing, Consultant may initiate collection action 
and the Client shall be responsible for all costs of collection, 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees.  As a matter of business 
practice, Consultant would intend to file lien rights against the 
property if payment is not received before lien rights would 
expire.  Consultant shall have the right to suspend its services 
without any liability arising out of or related to such suspension 
in the event invoices are not paid within 30 days of receipt. 
 


D. When estimates of fees or expenses are quoted, they are 
simply that, estimates.  Actual costs invoiced may be higher or 
lower due to actual fees or expenses incurred.  When fees or 
expenses are anticipated to be higher or lower than estimated, 
Consultant will make every effort to inform you in a timely 
manner, even prior to incurring the costs, if possible. 


 
E. Consultant will bill additional services, if requested, in 


accordance with the fee schedule in effect at the time the work 
is performed or as otherwise negotiated.  


 
7. Dispute Resolution 
 


In the event a dispute shall develop between the Client and the 
Consultant arising out of or related to this Agreement, the Client and 
Consultant agree to use the following process to resolve the 
dispute: 


 
A. The Client and Consultant agree to first negotiate all disputes 


between them in good faith for a period of at least 30 days 
from notice first being served in writing to the Client or 
Consultant of the dispute. 


 
B. If the Client and Consultant are unable to resolve the dispute 


by negotiation as described above, the Client and Consultant 
agree to submit the dispute to non-binding mediation.  Such 
mediation shall be conducted in accordance with Construction 
Industry Dispute Resolution procedures of the American 
Arbitration Association. 


 
C. If the Client and Consultant are unable to resolve the dispute 


by negotiation or by mediation, they are free to utilize whatever 
other legal remedies are available to settle the dispute. 


 
8. Insurance 
 


A. Consultant 
 
Consultant maintains general liability and property insurance; 
vehicle liability; and workers’ compensation coverage meeting 
state and federal mandates.  Consultant also carries 
professional liability insurance.  Certificates of Insurance will 
be provided upon written request. 


 
B. Client 


 
The Client shall procure and maintain, at its expense, general 
liability, property insurance and, if appropriate, workers’ 
compensation and builders risk insurance. Client waives all 
claims against the Consultant arising out of losses or damages 
to the extent such losses or damages are covered by the 
foregoing insurance policies maintained by the Client.   


 
C. Contractor 


 
 The Consultant shall procure from the Contractor, as directed 


by the Client and/or as provided in the Scope of Services, 
Certificates of Insurance for the type and amounts as directed 
by the Client, and shall require the Contractor to name the 
Consultant as an additional insured under the Contractor’s 
general and auto liability policies.  


 
9. Limitations of Liability/Indemnity 
 


A. In recognition of the relative risks, rewards and benefits of the 
project to both the Client and Consultant, the risks have been 
allocated such that the Client agrees that, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, the Consultant’s total aggregate liability to 
the Client for any and all injuries, damages, claims, losses or 


expenses arising out of this Agreement from any cause or 
causes, shall not exceed the limits of Consultant’s professional 
liability insurance policy, not including reimbursable 
subconsultant fees and expenses.  Such causes include, but 
are not limited to, Consultant’s negligence, errors, omissions, 
strict liability, breach of contract or breach of express or 
implied warranty. 


 


B. Client and Consultant each agree to indemnify and hold the 
other harmless, and their respective officers and employees 
from and against liability for losses, damages and expenses, 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees, to the extent they are 
caused by the indemnifying party’s negligent acts, errors or 
omissions.  In the event claims, losses, damages or expenses 
are caused by the joint or concurrent negligence of Client and 
Consultant, they shall be borne by each party in proportion to 
its negligence. 


 
C. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, 


impose, or give rise to any duty owed by Client or Consultant 
to any contractor, subcontractor, supplier, other individual or 
entity, or to any surety for or employee or any of them.  
 
All duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this 
Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of Client 
and Consultant and not for the benefit of any other party. 
 


10. Use of Documents 
  


All documents prepared or furnished by consultant pursuant to this 
Agreement are instruments of Consultant’s professional service, 
and Consultant shall retain an ownership and property interest 
therein, including all copyrights.  Consultant grants Client a license 
to use instruments of Consultant’s professional service for the 
purpose of planning, constructing, occupying or maintaining the 
project or as otherwise intended.  Reuse or modification of any such 
documents by Client, without Consultant’s written permission and 
professional involvement in the applicable reuse or modification, 
shall be at Client’s sole risk, and Client agrees to waive all claims 
against and defend, indemnify and hold Consultant harmless from 
all claims, damages and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising 
out of such reuse by Client or by others acting through Client.  


 
11. Survey Stakes for Construction (for projects involving 


construction) 
 


Stakes placed by Consultant for use by the Contractor shall only be 
used for the specific purpose indicated.  Any use of stakes by the 
Client for purposes other than indicated and/or communicated by 
the Consultant, without Consultant’s written permission, shall be at 
Client’s sole risk, and Client agrees to indemnify and hold 
Consultant harmless for all claims, damages and expense, including 
attorneys’ fees, arising out of such unauthorized used by Client or 
others acting through Client. 


 
12. Use of Electronic Media 
 


Copies of documents that may be relied upon by Client are limited 
to the printed copies (also known as hard copies) that are signed or 
sealed by Consultant except for electronic copies of documents 
available for printing by Contractors during bidding and/or 
construction from QuestCDN.com or as specified in this Agreement 
for Services or as specifically indicated in writing by Consultant.  
Files in electronic formats, or other types of information furnished by 
Consultant to Client such as text, data or graphics, are only for 
convenience of Client.  Any conclusion or information obtained or 
derived from such electronic files will be at the user’s sole risk.  
When transferring documents in electronic formats, Consultant 
makes no representations as to long-term compatibility, usability, or 
readability of documents resulting form the use of software 
application packages, operating systems or computer hardware 
differing from those in use by Consultant at the beginning of the 
project. 


 
13. Opinions of Cost 
 


When included in Consultant’s scope of services, opinions or 
estimates of probable construction cost are prepared on the basis of 
Consultant’s experience and qualifications and represent 







Rev. 7/1/14  


Page 3 of 3 
(General Terms and Conditions) 


W:\Standard Contracts\GeneralTerms and Cond Rev 0714-HVC.doc 


Consultant’s judgment as a professional generally familiar with the 
industry.  However, since Consultant has no control over the cost of 
labor, materials, equipment or services furnished by others, over 
contractor’s methods of determining prices, or over competitive 
bidding or market conditions,  Consultant cannot and does not 
guarantee that proposals, bids, or the actual construction cost will 
not vary from Consultant’s opinions or estimates of probable 
construction cost. 


 
14. Standard of Care 
 


The Standard of Care for all professional services performed or 
furnished by Consultant under this Agreement will be the skill and 
care used by members of Consultant’s profession practicing under 
similar circumstances or similar scope of services at the same time 
and in the same locality.  Consultant makes no warranties, express 
or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with 
Consultant’s services. 


 
15. Termination  
   


The obligation to provide further services under this Agreement may 
be terminated: 


 
A. For Cause 


 
1. By either party upon 30 days written notice in the event of 


substantial failure by the other party to perform in 
accordance with the terms hereof, through no fault of the 
terminating party.  The failing party shall have the right, 
within 30 days, to correct or remedy the cited failures. 


 
2. By Consultant 
   


a. Upon seven days written notice if Consultant 
believes that he is being requested by Client to 
furnish or perform services contrary to Consultant’s 
responsibilities as a licensed professional.  
Consultant shall have no liability to Client on account 
of such termination. 


 
b. Upon seven days written notice if the Consultant’s 


services for the project are delayed or suspended for 
more than 90 days for reasons beyond Consultant’s 
control. 


 
c. Upon seven days written notice if the Client has 


failed to pay for previous services rendered and/or if 
his account is more than 60 days past due. 


 
B. To Discontinue Project 


 
By Client effective upon the receipt of notice by Consultant. 


 
C. Reimbursement for Services 


 
Consultant shall be reimbursed for all services and expenses 
rightfully incurred prior to termination.   


 
16. Force Majeure 
 


Neither party shall be deemed in default of this Agreement to the 
extent that any delay of failure in the performance of its obligations 
results from any cause beyond its reasonable control and without its 
negligence.  This shall include mass illness caused by a pandemic 
and potential government pronouncement of the pandemic. 


 
17. Successors Assigns and Beneficiaries 
 


A. Client and Consultant each is hereby bound and the partners, 
successors, executors, administrators and legal 
representatives of Client and Consultant are hereby bound to 
the other party by this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, executors administrators and legal 
representatives (and said assigns) of such other party, in 
respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations of this 
Agreement.  


 


B. Neither Client nor Consultant may assign, sublet, or transfer 
any rights under or interest (including, but without limitation, 
moneys that are due or may become due) in this Agreement 
without the written consent of the other, except to the extent 
that any assignment, subletting, or transfer is mandated or 
restricted by law.  Unless specifically stated to the contrary in 
any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will 
release or discharge the assignor from any duty of responsibility 
under this Agreement.  


 
18. Municipal Financial Advisor Services 
 


The Consultant is not registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission as a municipal advisor.  Consultant does not perform 
municipal advisory services (as covered under the Dodd-Frank Wall 
Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, signed into law on 
July 21, 2010, as it relates to financial products and services).  In 
the event Client desires such services, it is the Client’s responsibility 
to retain an independent registered advisor for that purpose. 


 
19. Controlling Laws 
 


This Agreement is to be governed by the laws of the state in which 
the project is located. 





